
1

Kent M Barnes

From: Christopher J Wood

Sent: Tuesday, 18 December 2018 3:24 PM

To: Kent M Barnes

Cc: Arunav Kakati

Subject: FW: Poolwood Road and Captian Cook highway Roundabout in Cairns

Attachments: Comments_mdmcdon.pdf

Ken,, for your information 

 
Kind Regards 
 
Christopher Wood 
Project Manager  | Far North District/Cairns Office 
Program Delivery And Operations | Department of Transport and Main Roads 
Floor 7 | Cairns Corporate Tower | 15 Lake Street | Cairns Qld 4870 
PO Box 6185 | Cairns Qld 4870 
P: (07) 40457158  
E: Christopher.j.wood@tmr.qld.gov.au  
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au 

 

 

From: Julianne A Whiteside  

Sent: Tuesday, 18 December 2018 2:02 PM 

To: Arunav Kakati <arunav.z.kakati@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Christopher J Wood <Christopher.J.Wood@tmr.qld.gov.au>; 

David G Hamilton <david.g.hamilton@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Cc: Carolyn A Siggs <carolyn.a.siggs@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Grant J Pollard <grant.j.pollard@tmr.qld.gov.au>; Nicole M 

Buchanan <Nicole.M.Buchanan@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Subject: FW: Poolwood Road and Captian Cook highway Roundabout in Cairns 

 

Afternoon. 

 

For your information. 

We will be adjusting accordingly and get something to you in the new year. 

We will be incorporating the Council comments as best as we can too. 

 
Regards, 
 
Julianne 
Principal Engineer (Civil) | Far North District 
Program Delivery And Operations | Department of Transport and Main Roads 
 
Floor 5 | Cairns Corporate Tower | 15 Lake Street | Cairns Qld 4870 
PO Box 6185 | Cairns Qld 4870 
P: (07) 40457195 | F: (07) 40457250 
M:
E: julianne.a.whiteside@tmr.qld.gov.au 
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au 

 

From: Grant J Pollard  

Sent: Tuesday, 18 December 2018 10:44 AM 

To: Julianne A Whiteside <Julianne.A.Whiteside@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Subject: FW: Poolwood Road and Captian Cook highway Roundabout in Cairns 

 

 

 
Kind regards, 
 

N/R
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Grant Pollard 
Senior Advisor (Design) | Far North Region / Cairns Office 
Program Delivery Branch | Department of Transport and Main Roads 
 
Floor 10 | Cairns Corporate Tower | 15 Lake Street | Cairns Qld 4870 
PO Box 6185 | Cairns Qld 4870 
P: (07) 40457178 | F: (07) 4045129 
E: grant.j.pollard@tmr.qld.gov.au 
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au 

 

From: Mark D McDonald  

Sent: Monday, 17 December 2018 6:13 PM 

To: Grant J Pollard <grant.j.pollard@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Cc: Jon C Douglas <jon.c.douglas@tmr.qld.gov.au>; David P Gough <David.P.Gough@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Poolwood Road and Captian Cook highway Roundabout in Cairns 

 

Hi Grant, 

Please find my comments in the attached markup. I agree with David’s comment to use the D4-1 sign in place of 

KEEP RIGHT. Please note my comments apply to all the approaches, I’ve only commented on the first instance of an 

issue to avoid duplication. 

 

Happy to discuss further. 

 
Kind regards, 
 
Mark McDonald 
Principal Technologist (Bicycles, Pedestrians and Motorcycles) | Road Operations 
Engineering & Technology | Department of Transport and Main Roads 
 
Floor 11 | Brisbane City - 313 Adelaide Street | 313 Adelaide Street | Brisbane City Qld 4000 
GPO Box 1412 | Brisbane City Qld 4001 
P: (07) 30666494 
E: mark.d.mcdonald@tmr.qld.gov.au 
W: www.tmr.qld.gov.au 

 
 

From: Grant J Pollard  

Sent: Tuesday, 11 December 2018 2:33 PM 

To: Mark D McDonald <Mark.D.McDonald@tmr.qld.gov.au> 

Subject: Poolwood Road and Captian Cook highway Roundabout in Cairns 

 

Hi Mark 

David Gough forward information on a number of months ago to a bicycle section of TMR.. 

We have changed the Roundabout Approach to reduce approach speed, I have some pavement marking details 

relating to on road Bicycle paths and markings and make sure it meets  latest District Policy. 

Would it be possible to case your eye over it, We are yet to send it to the local bicycle group for comment, 

Thanks Mark 

. 
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
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Memorandum 
 

 
Our ref  
Your ref  
Date 21 January 2019 

 

To High Risk Roads (HRR) Project 
Team 

Subject Meeting 2:00pm 21 January 2019 CCH HRR approach to Poolwood Road 

roundabout upgrade 

 

 
Present:  Principal Engineer (DGH) 

Communications Support Officer (JW) 
Senior Communications Officer (EN) 

  Project Manager (KB) 
roject Manager (CW) 

Cairns Bicycle User Group (CBUG) (BM) 
Cairns Bicycle User Group (CBUG) (ST) 

 
Summary- CBUG are happy with the overall design, with some minor suggestions. The 

group support separation of traffic to cyclists and agree these works should go ahead.    

 
DGH, JW, KB, EN and CW met BM and ST at the TMR office, 15 Lake Street, Cairns.  
 
JW- opened the meeting and explained that TMR was planning for safety upgrades at 
Poolwood Road roundabouts along the Captain Cook Highway as part of the High-Risk 
Roads (HRR) program. The purpose of the meeting was for feedback to be provided on our 
draft plan, so we can take these into consideration for our final plan. 
 
EN- Shared what TMR has planned for significant projects within Cairns for cyclists. 
 
DGH- The HRR program is a staged approach, along the Captain Cook Highway, needed 
because of safety concerns. We will look to apply the same philosophy of Poolwood 
roundabout at other roundabouts on CCH to increase safety for cyclists and motorists. 
 
ST- We are appreciative of the request to come in. It is good TMR have consulted with CRC. 
 

Department of Transport and Main Roads Enquiries   
 Telephone +61 7 40457134 
 Facsimile +61 7  
 
  
   
 

 

N/R

N/R

N/R

N/R

N/R

N/R

N/R
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BM- The concrete needs to be thicker. Where the lane goes from two to one is the worst 
spot for cyclists. Is there the possibility for grade separation? 
 
DGH- We may look in future, but this option can be cost prohibitive. Grade separation is 
always our preferred option. 
 
KB- Explained how concrete will be placed and current issues that are experienced by 
cyclists-which TMR is aware of and will be fixing under this project. 
 
BM- Machans is an example of where it is working right. Could you tidy up and bring back 
where concrete is currently placed. I believe surface treatments are the way to go. Each leg 
should have the option to go off the side if not confident. Green paint on road would be 
good. 
 
BM- There is an issue with northbound and attempting to turn into Kewarra Beach. We like 
the keep right signage that is in place on roundabouts. 
 
CW- The off-road will be extended to 2.5 metres, which will provide more space for 
manoeuvres and bike usage. 
 
DGH we will come back to you with a concept drawing that you can release to your 
members for feedback.  
 
JW- How would you like to be kept informed during this process? 
 
BM- Happy to be contacted at any time.  
 

Communications Support Officer 
 

N/R
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Memorandum 
 

 
Our ref  
Your ref  
Date 21 January 2019 

 

To High Risk Roads (HRR) Project 
Team 

Subject Meeting 10:00am 22 January 2019 CCH HRR approach to Poolwood 

Road roundabout upgrade 

 

 
Present:  Communications Support Officer (JW) 

Senior Communications Officer (EN) 
  Project Manager (KB) 

Project Manager (CW) 
Cairns Cycling Club (CCC) (MP) 
Cairns Cycling Club (CCC) (TK) 

 
Summary- CCC are happy with the overall design, with some minor suggestions. The group 

believe this is a positive move forward and will be welcomed by bicycle users.    

 
JW, KB, EN and CW met MP and TK at the TMR office, 15 Lake Street, Cairns.  
 
JW- opened the meeting and explained that TMR was planning for safety upgrades at 
Poolwood Road roundabouts along the Captain Cook Highway as part of the High-Risk 
Roads (HRR) program. The purpose of the meeting is for feedback to be provided on our 
draft plan, so we can take these into consideration for our final plan. 
 
EN- Shared what TMR has planned for significant projects within Cairns for cyclists. 
 
CW- The HRR program is a staged approach, along the Captain Cook Highway (CCH). This 
is needed because of safety concerns. We will look to apply the replicate Poolwood with 
other roundabouts on CCH. How does your cycling group tend to ride? 
 
TK- Racing group, however we have some commuters within our group  
 

Department of Transport and Main Roads Enquiries   
 Telephone +61 7 40457134 
 Facsimile +61 7  
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MP- Some of the existing treatments are problematic. Concrete barriers are potentially 
dangerous for vehicles. I like the idea of separated traffic from cyclists. I do believe the 
concrete is not aligned and not in the right location. 
 
MP- If I was slower I would like concrete. If you are going 30kms an hour or faster, you need 
more skill. It is hard to give way whilst looking for traffic and navigating.  
 
TK- On the weekends we meet at Villa Romana and use both the lane and the bike lane. We 
average 40-60 riders on these rides. The current concrete alignment doesn’t give flow when 
riding. 
Agree that the speed sign should move back and the proposed gives more of a flow. This 
looks good.  
 
KB- We are looking to change driver behaviours and slow down cars when approaching the 
roundabout. We are planning semi mountable kerbs on cyclist’s side and a 2.5 metre 
shoulder. 
 
MP- I don’t think rails are necessary on the side. The road would need a little widening to 
keep cyclists away from kerb as you turn. The side isn’t mirrored, so would need more 
shoulder to look safely. Use barriers to encourage people to look without creating a crash 
hazard. 
 
MP- It is good to know the other roundabouts will be looked at, as there are the same issues 
at the others. We see this all as a positive.  Some cyclists are scared to use roundabout so 
having a safer option to take would be good. We support a slight deviation of bike path to get 
off road. Is there the option to use the culvert? 
 
TK- This is a positive move and will be welcomed. 
 
CW- Once we have incorporated your feedback will come back to you with a concept 
drawing that you can release to your members for feedback.  
 
JW- How would you like to be kept informed during this process? 
 
MP- Happy to be contacted by email.  
 
 

Communications Support Officer 
 

N/R
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Memorandum 
 

 
Our ref  
Your ref  
Date 21 January 2019 

 

To High Risk Roads (HRR) Project 
Team 

Subject Meeting 9.30am 18 January 2010 CCH HRR Endeavour Road  

intersection upgrade   

 

 
Present:  Principal Engineer (DGH) 

JW Senior Communications Officer (JW) 
  KB Project Manager (KB) 

CBRE, Manager of Clifton Village Shopping Centre on 
behalf of Indigenous Business Australia. (KP)   

    
 
DGH, JW and KB met KP at the CBRE offices, 15 Lake Street, Cairns.  
 
Summary: The property manager understands the need to close the entry point into the 

service station off the Captain Cook Highway but is seeking an upgrade to the Elford Street 

intersection to compensate. She has money to contribute to the upgrade if it can be done. 

She wants any works to be done in tandem so as not to adversely affect customers and 

wants to work with TMR for the best outcome. 

 
DGH opened the meeting and explained that TMR was planning for safety upgrades at key 
intersections along the Captain Cook Highway as part of the High-Risk Roads (HRR) 
program. 
 
KP I can see why you want to get rid of it (entry from CCH into service station directly after 
lights) but the Elford St intersection isn’t coping with the load already there. It’s the only 
access road into the shopping centre. 
 
DGH It’s (HRR program) a staged approach, along the Captain Cook Highway, needed 
because of safety concerns.  
 

Department of Transport and Main Roads Enquiries   
 Telephone +61 7 40457134 
 Facsimile +61 7  
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N/R

N/R
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KP I’ve had Bransfords on the phone. They are not happy. They would lose business. We 
will fight this unless we can get an upgrade to Elford Street intersection. If we can create 
something there that creates easy flow there, then I will support it (the entry closure) but the 
tenant will fight it.  
 
DGH We need to look at parking configurations. 
 
KP Traffic count is quite high actually. This is one of the best (highest turnover) Coles in 
Cairns. I feel like I can sell this if we can upgrade the intersection. 
 
DGH Anything we do at Elford Street will need to be in tandem with Cairns Regional Council 
(CRC).  
 
KP We manage the whole area for IBA. I’ve got a little bit of money to improve the entrance. 
We could widen it. The tree is an issue (A large melaleuca (paper bark) growing on the 
corner of the parking area near Elford Street). It needs removing. We have commenced 
actions for removing the tree. 
 
DGH: We are talking with CRC about pedestrian access and so on in this area. The network 
had grown up. We have legacy issues with development that used be suitable, but 
populations and volumes have grown. 
 
KP Requested a diagram or concept map to be able to send owner. 
 
DGH and KB: We will check to see if we can release it and get back to you. 
 
KP Will you be upgrading the bike path (Poolwood to Endeavour)? Then we will upgrade our 
cycle facilities as well. 
 
DGH We will be upgrading the bike paths within the next two to two and a half years. 
 
KP If it (Elford Street intersection) goes ahead, can it be done before the other entrance is 
cut out. We need to maintain good sales for everyone and not put off our shoppers and 
customers and thus maintain good shopping habits. 
 
KP Once we get the final plan of what’s happening, we can sit down together with 
Bransfords and talk through this. I will support you. There’s also some opportunities for IBA 
to create boat parking for Bransfords customers to access. 
 
DGH we will come back to you with a concept drawing then an outline of timelines and when 
upgrade talks will begin with CRC. 
 
 
 

Senior Communications Officer 
 

N/R
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